[bookmark: _GoBack]**NOTICE** THE QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS CONTAINED WITHIN THIS DOCUMENT SUPERSEDE THE QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS PROVIDED AT THE TIME AMENDMENT 0003 WAS POSTED. WITH REGARDS TO ANY DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN THE TWO QUESTION AND ANSWER DOCUMENTS, THIS DOCUMENT WILL TAKE PRECEDENCE.  

1. Will we need to build an interface with HDRL for file transfer for the lab worksheets and reports on repeatedly reactive specimens?  Will HDRL personnel be made available to us?

Answer:   No, an interface with HDRL is not required. HDRL will transfer the result data via Secure File Downloads. The data will be provided in the format described in TE 11.  HDRL personnel will support NBIMC and the contractor in working through the data transfer process.

Follow on question: Will we need to build the capability to download/receive a data file from HDRL and upload that into our systems?

Answer: See Amendment 0005. The Contractor shall be capable of receiving electronic email from HDRL and download data from link provided, and submit the result back to the HIV Management Loader in the proper HL7 data message format. An updated TE-11 is provided with Amendment 0005. 

2. 1.1.2.1 (Page 23) and 5.1 (Page 35) make reference to Schedule B.  Where is this schedule located?

Answer: PWS was changed from Schedule B to schedule of supplies as services (solicitation pages 3-21). See amendment 0002

3. Page 25, 1.13.1 references a transition period commencement date of February 1, 2015.  Shouldn’t this be February 1, 2016? 

Answer: Yes, see amendment 0001

Update: See Amendment 0005 transition period commencement date has been revised to March 30, 2015.

4. Page 30 - 3.1.3 says the Government will provide confirmatory testing and final interpretation of HIV and HCV infection status of all repeat reactive specimens, to include data files with final interpretation.  Section 1.1.2.1 states that Hepatitis B Antigen confirmatory testing will be performed by a Government specified site, but it is not listed in the section above.  Should the Hepatitis B Antigen confirmatory testing be listed in this section?

Answer:  Yes, Hepatitis B Antigen confirmatory testing has been added to section 3.1.3. See amendment number 0002.

5. Page 30 - 3.1.4.   “The Department of Defense Serum Repository (DODSR) will provide sample pick-up services at least monthly each year frozen and other stored specimens available.” Should we plan to have enough freezer space to accommodate a frequency of 6-8 weeks?

Answer: See revised PWS provided with Amendment 0002.

6. Page 31:  4.4.7 requires us to have a CDC Permit to Import/Transfer Etiologic Agents.  Section 4.4.7.1 requires that the Permit be provided as part of our submission. Where should we attach that Permit to our submission?

Answer: Copies of certifications are to be submitted as part of the non-price submission. See instructions to offerors contained within the solicitation.

7. Page 33, 4.7.4. Requires the laboratory to follow DIACAP DODD 8500.1 and DoDI 8500.2 regulations.  These regulations prohibit the use of unsupported operating systems in any equipment used to perform work for the Navy.  Will a copy of the page of the various operating manuals of the equipment we use for this RFP which shows the version of the operating system be sufficient to prove we have met the requirement?  

[bookmark: PD000115]Answer: A technical submittal is not required for DIACAP DODD 8500.1 and DoDI 8500.2 regulations; it is a requirement of the PWS. See ADDENDUM 52.212-1 INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS (SECTION L) for required technical submissions.

8. Page 33 - 4.8.2.1. Contractor barcode labels for the initial serum separator tube and shall be constructed by specifications set forth in TE-3 with the provision that the label material circumvent and overlap on the tube (19 X 100 mm) to prevent detaching during transshipment to the Contractor facility.  Section 3.1.1 states “Centrifuged specimens in 16 x 100 mm serum separated gel tubes from Government SA(s).”   Should the above state 16 x 100 mm? 

Answer:  The PWS has been revised to: 16x100mm. See Amendment 0002.

9. Page 35, 4.8.6.3 requires us to ship all repeatedly reactive specimens to HDRL at our expense. Is there a separate place that we can charge for this, or must we include this cost in our per specimen testing price?  Since this testing includes not just active duty personnel and their dependents, but also includes recruits, should our price anticipate potentially higher positivity rates for recruits (and thus a greater number of repeat reactives)?

Answer:  Unit prices shall be inclusive of all costs; there is not a separate place for charging for ensuring transshipping of the repeatedly reactive specimens to Government directed sites. Additionally, there is no current data supporting potentially higher positivity rates for recruits.

Follow on question: 4.8.6.3 requires us to ship all repeatedly reactive specimens to HDRL at our expense. Since this includes all repeatedly reactives, and not just those which are confirmed, is there a separate place that we can charge for this, or must we include this in our per specimen testing price?  (Follow on to Q&A #9)

Answer: See original answer to questions 9 above.

10. Section 5.2.5.1.3 (Page 39) requires us to ship all “Grossly Hemolyzed” and “Quantity Not Sufficient” specimens to HDRL – at our expense – and to include various reports related to these specimens. Since these rejected specimens largely are the fault of the SA which collected the specimen, will the Navy reimburse us for the cost of these collectors and three shipments (to the SA, SA to contractor, and contractor to HDRL)?

Answer:  See answer to question 9.

11. Page 40, Section 5.3.8 makes reference to HIV-1/2/O.  Should this be changed to HIV Ag/Ab?

Answer:  No. The test name is HIV-1/2 which includes HIV Ag/Ab Combo, HIV-1/HIV-2 Plus O and HIV1/O/2. 

12. Page 40, Section 5.3.8 makes reference to HBsAg and HCV.  Should it also reference HBsAb?

Answer:  No, Section 5.3.8 references testing needing confirmatory testing only. HBS AB is an immunity test that does not need confirmatory testing.

13. Page 42: Table C-1 makes reference to HBsAg and HCV. Should it also reference HBsAb?

Answer:  Yes, Hepatitis Surface Antibody has been added to Table C-1

14. The DICAP inspection and certification process is difficult with a team of inspectors coming to our facility for several days to check our systems and all equipment every year. Will the Navy separately reimburse us for our cost to work with the inspection team?

Answer: A DICAP certification is a requirement of the PWS. The Navy will not provide reimbursement for obtaining the certification. 

Follow on Question: The DIACAP inspection and certification process is difficult with a team of Navy inspectors coming to our facility for several days to check our systems and all equipment every year.  Given that achieving DIACAP certification is difficult and time-consuming, does the Navy recommend any consultants to assist with this process?

Answer: The Government is unable to provide the requested information. 
  
15. The RFP states that we must follow all FDA rules. Those rules require that all tests must be performed on equipment approved by the FDA for this test as indicated in the product insert. In order to meet this requirement is it sufficient that we show the page of the FDA approved package insert that shows the equipment we will be using is approved by the FDA?

Answer:  In accordance with the instructions to offerors contained within the Solicitation.

16. The interface to the Navy HML is very complex. We will need substantial Navy personnel time and computer access to make this happen. Will the Navy make these resources available to us? 

Answer:  NBIMC IT Staff will be available for testing when scheduled, but it is the contractor’s responsibility to have personnel qualified in HL7 message formatting and the IT technology required.

17. We are currently DIACAP certified. Should we include our certification in our submission?

Answer: Please refer to the instructions to offerors section contained within the solicitation for submission requirements.

18. Will the fact that we are currently DIACAP certified give us more points towards winning the RFP?

Answer: Contractors will be evaluated in accordance with the criteria specified within the solicitation. Please thoroughly review the solicitation.

19. The RFP indicates that this contract services 1,300 sites, many of those international sites.  Will the Navy be paying all the shipping costs or should we anticipate paying for the 5 to 6 shipments per week from the sites?

Answer: See answer to question 9. The contractor shall comply with all shipping requirements as outlined in the PWS.

20. Will the Navy give us more than 60 days to start testing if we need it?

Answer: The requirement is a 60 day transition period. Contractor shall provide full support on day 61. 

21. Should we include photos of our current testing facility to show that we have all the equipment installed ready for Navy testing?

Answer: Please thoroughly reviewing the instructions to offerors contained within the solicitation for submission requirements.
 
22. The Navy requires the laboratory to pass a pre-inspection during the 60 day transition. During the inspection will we need to demonstrate the installed, fully functional, testing equipment capable of performing the 950,000 (HIV plus Hepatitis) tests per year?

Answer: The PWS does not require a laboratory pre-inspection. 

Follow on: The Navy requires the laboratory to pass a pre-inspection during the 60 day transition.  At what point during the 60 days will there be the inspection to demonstrate the installed, fully functional, testing equipment capable of performing the 950,000 (HIV plus Hepatitis) tests per year?  (Follow on to Q&A #22)

Answer: See original answer above. The PWS does require a post award conference to be held during Contractor Phase-In. See revised PWS provide with amendment 0005.

23. The RFP requires us to include our COOP (DoD Directive 3020.26).  Should we submit it using the required (DoD Instruction 3020.42) format?

Answer: Please refer to the instructions to offerors contained within the solicitation for submission requirements.

24. Page 42, 5.8.2 requires 10% QC testing. Currently the Navy requires these specimens to be randomized (not in static locations) throughout the batch.  Will this continue to be a requirement?

Answer: Section 5.8.2 of the PWS requires 10% QC testing but does not state a requirement for the specimens to be randomized.

Follow on question: 5.8.3 requires “that if any internal quality control specimen gives erroneous results, the results for the entire screen batch shall be discarded and the entire batch immediately retested at the Contractor's expense.”  On a continuous flow instrument, is “batch” to be interpreted as meaning all testing since the previous successfully tested internal control specimen?  (Follow on to Q&A #24)

Answer: Yes, unless the contracting laboratory has a definitive way to determine at which point the instrument failed.

25. What happens if after being awarded the contract we can’t set up the interface to the Navy HML in 60 days?

Answer: Corrective action will be taken by the Government in accordance with the contract terms and conditions. It is the responsibility of the contractor to ensure they are able to comply with the requirements of the PWS. 

26. Page 40 - 5.4.2.2.1.2 states “The Contractor shall receive screening and confirmatory tests results from HDRL for the specified specimen barcodes and transmit test result messages securely using HL7 protocol compatible with the DoD CHCS-LIO.”  Will HDRL transmit those results electronically, eliminating manual entry of HDRL results by the contractor?

Answer: Yes.

Follow on question: 5.4.2.2.1.2 states “The Contractor shall receive screening and confirmatory tests results from HDRL for the specified specimen barcodes and transmit test result messages securely using HL7 protocol compatible with the DoD CHCS-LIO.”  Does this mean the Contractor must have the ability to insert HDRL confirmation results into the Contractor’s system and then send those results to the SA?  (Follow on to Q&A #26)

Answer:  No, The testing contractor does not send results directly to SA.  The contractor submits the results back to the HIV Management Loader (in NBIMC) in the proper HL7 data message format.

27. Page 42 - 5.7.4.1 of the PWS states “The Contractor shall ensure secured transmission of internal laboratory work sheets to NBIMC before certified final test results are sent to the Government.”  Recognizing the impact this would have on contractor’s ability to meet required TAT; does the above statement mean that before any screening result is certified and released, an internal laboratory worksheet must be sent to NBIMC for approval? 
Answer: Section 5.7.4.1 of the PWS has been revised to read “The Contractor shall ensure secured transmission of internal laboratory work sheets to NBIMC before certified confirmatory testing final results are sent to the Government.” See amendment 002.
 
28. Will this require a courier or can the samples be Fedex'd? 

Answer: Please review the PWS for shipping requirements. 

29. What will be the turn-around time on this requirement? 

Answer: Contract award is anticipated to be on or around January 29, 2016

Follow on question: With the revised submission deadline of January 22, 2016, when do you anticipate awarding this contract?   (Follow on to Q&A #29)

Answer: Contract award is anticipated to be on or around February 28, 2016.

30. Is this a new requirement or has it been previously competed? 

Answer: This is not a new requirement, it has been previously competed.

31. If it has been competed before and has a current incumbent, what is the amount that is being spent on this contract? 

Answer: Current contract number is N00189-09-D-Z004 issued to Center for Disease Detection. Further details regarding the current contract cannot be provided. 

32. Will the 90,000 specimens per month for initial HIV and Hepatitis screening be at 45k for HIV & 45k for Hep? 

Answer: The estimated 90,000 specimens/month is to ensure enough quantities in the event of possible troop mobilization: approx. 65K for HIV screen and 25K for hepatitis screen. 

33. Can you please provide me the list of submitting activities locations and address and if there is a contact person as we need to provide the information for issuance of CDC permit for import of specimens.

Answer: See Amendment 0005: Attachment Titled “Submitting Activities” has been updated providing a list of submitting activity locations. **NOTE** the list is for informational purposes only and may not reflect the actual number of activities that will submit specimens during contract performance. 

34. In order for us to add locations on CDC import permit, CDC requires contact name at the submitting activities internationally. Is it possible for you to provide that or if you cannot in which case a letter to CDC to waive that requirement?

Answer: This information will become available during the transition period following contract award.
35. The CDC permit is required to be submitted as a document to show qualification for the vendor. Is it ok to submit the CDC permit after the award once we receive the names of the SAs.

Answer: See revised instructions to offerors contained within amendment 0005. For purposes of the technical submission criteria the prospective bidder is required to show that they are familiar with the labeling and application of the CDC permit by providing a copy of their current active permit. In accordance with the PWS, at contract award the successful bidder must apply for current permits to be distributed to the 8 possible sites previously identified on the POC lists.

36. Is the 90,000 tests on for 30,000 Sailors/Marines or is it 45,000 HIV and 45,000 HEP? i.e. What is the test break down?

Answer: 65,000 rough estimate of HIV screening on Sailors/Marines/Coast Guard 25,000 rough estimate of Hepatitis screening of Recruits (and a few HCV on baby boomers). 

37. Is this test now being conducted by the Navy/DOD? Or is it being conducted by a contractor?

Answer: See answer to question 31.

38. Is the Center for Disease Detection also still re-biding on contract?

Answer: The Government is unable to provide the requested information.

39. Does the Government have any recommendations for preparing the solicitation’s non-price submission?

Answer: Please thoroughly review the instructions to offerors and evaluation criteria contained within the solicitation. 

40. Is there any specific reason this RFP is not set aside for small businesses?

Answer: It was determined to be in the Government best interest to solicit the instant acquisition on an unrestricted basis. 

41. With regards to the CDC permit,  can  a current active permit for other locations or a general permit be provided to meet the technical submission criteria, or does it need to be a permit showing the all the current submitting activities locations?

Answer: See the answer to question number 35. 

42. Amendment 0003 removed from section 1.13.1 the requirement that during the Phase-In period the Contractor “distribute testing supplies and perform testing on dummy samples in order to commence full performance” on the specified testing start date.  Based on the remaining wording of that sentence, it appears this deletion may have been accidental.  Will the Contractor be required to “distribute testing supplies and perform testing on dummy samples” as part of demonstrating their readiness for testing during the Phase-In period?

Answer: The deletion was an administrative error. See Amendment 0005 incorporating the correction. 

43. In order to start testing, we must buy equipment, hire and train people, establish the ability to transmit and receive data, and achieve DIACAP certification. The RFP states that this is a one year contract with four one-year options; is there any requirement or guarantee that the Navy will exercise the option to extend the contract past the first year?  

Answer: Please review the terms and conditions incorporated into the solicitation, specifically FAR Clause 52.217-9.

44. If the contract is not extended beyond one year, will the Navy reimburse us for all the equipment we had to purchase?

Answer: Please review the terms and conditions incorporated into the solicitation. 

45. Prior to commencement of testing we must have a certified Juniper box in order to connect with the Navy HML system over the DoD NIPPERNET. Will the Navy help us acquire and set up the Juniper box?

Answer: The Navy will only provide the required specifications of the device to be acquired, and coordinate with DISA to have the juniper box configured.
 
46. 4.7.4 and 4.7.4.2 require DIACAP compliance as certified by an outside vendor to ensure compliance with DoD MAC II requirements.  Must this certification of compliance with DIACAP and DoD MAC II requirements be demonstrated during the Phase In period prior to commencing testing?

Answer: Yes, DIACAP certification through DHA shall be obtained/demonstrated during the contract Phase In period prior to commencing testing.

47. 5.8.2 requires at least 10% of testing “shall be internal control specimens”.  Can the Contractor charge for this added testing expense?

Answer: See answer to question 9.

48. 5.8.3 requires “that if any internal quality control specimen gives erroneous results, the results for the entire screen batch shall be discarded and the entire batch immediately retested at the Contractor's expense.”  On a continuous flow instrument, is “batch” to be interpreted as meaning all testing since the previous successfully tested internal control specimen?

Answer: See answer to question #24

49. 4.7.4. Requires the laboratory to follow DIACAP DODD 8500.1 and DoDI 8500.2 regulations.  These regulations prohibit the use of unsupported operating systems (e.g., Windows XP, Windows 2000, IBM O/S 2) in any equipment used to perform work for the Navy.  Does this mean that older testing equipment which uses one of these unsupported operating systems cannot be used in performance of this contract?

Answer: Yes.

50. Section 5.2.5.1.3 (Page 39) requires us to ship all “Grossly Hemolyzed” and “Quantity Not Sufficient” specimens to HDRL – at our expense – and to include various reports related to these specimens.  Since these rejected specimens largely are the fault of the SA which collected the specimen, will the Navy reimburse us for the cost of these collectors and three shipments (to the SA, SA to contractor, and contractor to HDRL)?

Answer:  See answer to question 9. See Amendment 0005- COR approval is required prior to the rejection of a specimen.  The Navy will request the Contractor send a picture of the rejected samples prior to approving shipment to HDRL. See PWS Section 5.2.5.1.3.1, prior to shipping the rejected samples to HDRL, the Contractor shall securely send (email) a photograph of the rejected sample(s) to NBIMC for COR approval.

51. Is DIACAP still a requirement for this contract?
 
Answer: See answer to question 46. 

52.  Is it expected that the Navy will transition away from utilizing the B2B Gateway VPN paths from DISA?

Answer: If a transition does occur the requirements of the PWS are expected to remain unchanged. The only difference would be the Interprotocol addresses and the gateways the data travels. It is the responsibility of the contractor to ensure equipment and circuit meet the requirements of the PWS.

 53. If transition of systems does occur how do we gain the expertise to operate under a new system?

Answer: See answer to question 52.
 
54. How would we go about getting our IT security team approved to work on the Juniper box to make the necessary changes in order to work under a new system if required?

Answer: If a system change is required, DHA HIT I&O B2B office is responsible for managing the configuration of these devices.

55. The current RFP requires that we operate with a DOD reviewed and approved COOP which requires a backup generator to run our testing facility.  In the event of a system change will that requirement still exist?

Answer: Yes, see answer to question 52.

 56. The IT network security requirements require that the members of any onsite IASO team have independent CISSP certification. Will it be sufficient to provide their certifications during the facility inspection prior to contract startup? 

Answer: See PWS for performance requirements.

57. Do we arrange and pay for shipment from the 1300 locations to the lab? If so how often and amounts?

Answer: During the transition period, each site will register with the contractor providing the vendor with their estimated shipping volume, frequency, preferred pickup time, security issues, etc. Amendment 0005 provides Historical Shipping Data, which is attachment 9 to the solicitation.
